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Lasley, Timothy G

From: Lasley, Timothy G
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 3:58 PM
To: llopez@milestonepartners.com; jd@bdarchitects.com
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: BAR Action - June 18, 2019 - 612 West Main Street

June 19, 2019 
 
Special Use Permit  
BAR 19-06-07 
612 West Main Street 
Tax Parcel 290003000 
Jeff Leviens, Owner/ Heirloom West Main Street Second Phase LLC., Applicant 
UTAC Redevelopment; 
SUP request for Increase Density 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review 
(BAR) on June 18, 2019. The following action was taken: 
 

Motion: Schwarz moved that the proposed special use permit for additional residential density for 
the redevelopment at 612 West Main Street will not have an adverse impact on the West Main 
Street ADC District, with the understanding that the massing is not final, and must be further 
discussed, and [will require] a complete full design review at future BAR meeting(s) and propose 
the following conditions [for the SUP]: 

 Garage entry shall not be accessed directly from the building’s street wall along West 
Main Street; 

 That the building’s mass shall be broken down to reflect the multi-parcel massing 
historically on the site, as well as the West Main Street context, using building modulation; 

 That the Holsinger Building be seismically monitored during construction; 
 That there shall be pedestrian engagement with the street with an active, transparent, and 

permeable façade at street level; 
 And that the building and massing refer to the historic buildings on either side.  

Mohr seconded. Approved (7-0-2 with Earnst and Ball recused). 
 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at: 
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1370 
 
This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (December 18, 2020), unless within that time period you have 
either: been issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no building permit is 
required, commenced the project. You may request an extension of the certificate of appropriateness before this approval 
expires for one additional year for reasonable cause. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact either myself, or Jeff Werner at 434-970-3130 or wernerjb@charlottesville.org. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
Tim Lasley 
 
-- 
Tim Lasley 
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Acting Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
City of Charlottesville | Neighborhood Development Services 
University of Virginia | Class of 2020 
School of Architecture 
 
Phone: (434)-970-3398 
Email: lasleyt@charlottesville.org 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 
BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
STAFF REPORT  
June 18, 2019 
 
Special Use Permit 
BAR 19-06-07 
612 West Main Street 
Tax Parcel 290003000 
Jeff Leviens, Owner/ Heirloom West Main Street Second Phase LLC. , Applicant 
UTAC Redevelopment; Increase Density 
 

 
Background 
This parcel contains a non-contributing concrete block automotive building within the West Main Street 
ADC District. Historically, the building was constructed in phases with the first elements constructed 
circa 1959, and finished to its current state in 1973.  
 
Application 
Applicant submitted: 

• Heirloom West Main Street Second Phase LLC submittal dated May 14, 2019: SUP application, 
and project narrative. 

• Timmons Group submittal dated May 14, 2019: SUP concept plan (dated 05/13/19) 
• Bushman Dreyfus submittal dated May 14, 2019: Site location, zoning analysis (dated 05/14/19), 

proposed plans, massing – allowable envelope, massing – allowable vs. proposed envelope, and 
massing context. 

 
Request for BAR recommendation on a Special Use Permit (SUP) request to increase the by-right 
residential density if 43 DU/acre to 120 DU/acre. (DU = Dwelling Units. Increasing the allowed density 
will allow construction of a variety of dwelling unit sizes at various price points.  
 
Relevant City Code Section: Sec. 34-157(7) 
When the property that is the subject of the application for a special use permit is within a design control 
district, city council shall refer the application to the Board of Architectural Review (BAR) or Entrance 
Corridor Review Board (ERB), as may be applicable, for recommendations as to whether the proposed 
use will have an adverse impact on the district, and for recommendations as to reasonable conditions 
which, if imposed, that would mitigate any such impacts. The BAR or ERB, as applicable, shall return 
a written report of its recommendations to the city council. 
 
Discussion 
In evaluating thus SUP request, the Planning Commission and, ultimately, City Council will take into 
consideration the BAR’s recommendation on whether or not the SUP, if approved, would adversely 
impact West Main Street ADC district and, if so, any proposed conditions to mitigate the impact.  
 



612 West Main Street (June 14, 2019) 2 

The BAR’s recommendations is not a function of how the site will be used or occupied, but an evaluation 
of the requested SUP relative to the criteria within the ADC Design Guidelines. That is, will allowing 
increased density result in a project that conflicts with the Guidelines? 
 
Understanding that at a later date the final design must be reviewed and approved by the BAR, staff 
recommends the BAR find that the SUP will not have an adverse impact on the West Main ADC District. 
However, in reviewing the SUP the BAR has the opportunity to discuss—and offer recommendations on-
-the proposed massing and building envelope, and how it engages the streetscape and neighboring 
properties, etc., etc. Furthermore, the BAR may request that the Planning Commission and City Council 
consider including these design recommendations as conditions of approval for the SUP.  
 
 
Suggested Motions 
Approval: 
I move to recommend that the proposed special use permit for additional residential density for the 
redevelopment at 612 West Main Street will not have an adverse impact on the West Main Street ADC 
District, with the understanding that the massing is not final, and must be further discussed, and complete 
full design review at a future BAR meeting(s). 
 
(or with the following conditions…) 
 
Denial: 
I move to recommend that for the following reasons the proposed special use permit for additional 
residential density for the redevelopment at 612 West Main Street will have an adverse impact on the 
West Main Street ADC District…. 
 
(which may be mitigated by the following conditions…) 
 
 
 
 
 























UTAC	Redevelopment	
SUP	Application	

Request	for	Additional	Density	
Narrative	Statement	

May	14,	2019	
	

	
Heirloom	West	Main	Street	Second	Phase	LLC	(the	"Applicant"),	owner	of	the	property	
located	at	612	West	Main	Street	(and	in	City	records	as	Tax	Map	29	Parcel	3),	requests	
approval	of	a	special	use	permit	(“SUP”)	to	allow	residential	density	on	the	properties	up	to	
120	units	per	acre.			This	request	is	in	accordance	with	Section	34-641	of	the	City's	zoning	
ordinance.	The	proposal	includes	housing	units	with	commercial	space	on	the	first	floor.		
	
The	owners	of	the	Applicant	are	the	same	owners	of	Heirloom	West	Main	Development,	
LLC,	Owner/Developer,	of	the	adjacent	property	(“Adjacent	Property”),	located	at	600	West	
Main	Street	(and	in	the	City	records	as	Tax	Map	29	Parcel	7).		On	June	20,	2016,	the	
Adjacent	Property	received	a	similar	SUP	approval	sought	by	Applicant.		Therefore,	there	is	
precedent	for	granting	this	SUP	approval	in	this	corridor	of	West	Main	Street.	That	
Adjacent	Property	project	is	currently	under	construction	and	scheduled	for	completion	
later	this	year	which	will	include	the	return	of	the	beloved	local	food	icon,	Blue	Moon	Diner.			
	
Applicant,	as	part	of	this	SUP	process,	appeared	before	the	Board	of	Architectural	Review	
(“BAR”)	on	April	16,	2019	at	a	public	hearing	to	engage	in	a	preliminary	discussion	on	this	
application.	The	BAR	indicated	that	it	did	not	see	any	adverse	impact	to	granting	density.		
The	BAR	did	make	comment	about	massing	and	other	design	elements,	which	Applicant	
took	note	of	and	will	surely	address	during	the	Certificate	of	Appropriateness	approval	
process	following	this	SUP	application.	
	
Request	for	Additional	Density	
The	Applicant	anticipates	constructing	a	variety	of	housing	units	ranging	from	studio	units,	
1-bedroom,	2-bedroom	(and	potentially,	3-bedroom)	units.		Approval	of	additional	density	
up	to	120	units	per	acre	will	enable	the	Applicant	to	provide	this	broad	range	of	unit	types	
and	offer	them	at	a	variety	of	price	points	to	potential	residents.	Keeping	with	the	current	
restrictions	on	density	would	result	in	large,	expensive,	units	geared	to	one	segment	of	the	
residential	market,	or	worse,	derail	the	redevelopment	of	the	property	and	continue	the	
property	to	be	used	for	automotive	repair.			Approval	of	the	additional	density	will	enable	
the	project	to	positively	impact	the	housing	stock	and	options	available	in	the	West	Main	
Street	and	central	city	area	and	be	consistent	with	the	overall	vision	of	the	City	for	West	
Main	Street.	
	
Conformity	with	Comprehensive	Plan	
Additional	density	will	be	in	keeping	with	the	goal	of	the	City	as	expressed	in	the	
Comprehensive	Plan.			The	Comprehensive	Plan's	land	use	map	designates	the	properties	
for	mixed-use.		This	proposal	includes	both	housing	and	a	small	amount	of	retail.	The	
additional	residential	units	will	help	to	foster	the	creation	of	a	vibrant	mixed-use	
neighborhood	along	West	Main	Street.		While	there	are	a	range	of	businesses	along	West	
Main	Street,	there	are	few	housing	opportunities	along	the	eastern	portion	of	West	Main	
Street.		This	project	will	provide	such	housing.	
	



This	project	will	also	serve	towards	meeting	the	City's	Comprehensive	Plan	goals	to	"grow	
the	housing	stock"	and	"promote	housing	options."		The	Applicant	expects	to	include	in	the	
project	a	number	of	market-rate	(non-student)	studio	units	which	will	provide	a	housing	
option	not	presently	available	in	the	West	Main	or	Downtown	areas	(except	as	will	be	
provided	on	a	limited	basis	on	the	Adjacent	Property).		Furthermore,	the	project	is	directly	
in	line	with	the	goals	of	the	West	Main	Street	Streetscape	initiative	to	provide	“safe,	active,	
pleasant	and	usable”	places.		
	 	
Potential	Impacts	
Approval	of	additional	density	for	the	project	will	have	minimal	impact	on	the	West	Main	
Street	area.		The	residential	density	requested	is	provided	for	in	the	zoning	ordinance	as	a	
permitted	use	and	thus	the	City	has	already	decided	the	density	is	appropriate	for	the	
zoning	district.		Other	projects	along	West	Main	Street	have	been	approved	for	additional	
residential	density	beyond	that	permitted	by	right.		The	West	Main	Street	corridor	is	
anticipated	to	develop	as	an	urban	mixed-use	environment,	and	the	additional	density	will	
contribute	to	that	desired	environment.		Any	impacts	associated	with	increased	density	are	
mitigated	by	the	proximity	of	the	project	to	employment	and	retail	centers,	mass	transit	
and	the	provision	of	bicycle	facilities.			
	
It	is	anticipated	that	many	residents	will	choose	to	live	in	the	project	precisely	because	they	
will	be	able	to	walk	to	work,	shopping,	and	transit.			Because	West	Main	is	well	served	by	
bus	and	train	transit	as	well	as	cab	service,	residents	will	have	transportation	options.			
Bicycle	facilities	will	be	provided	and	much	of	the	City	is	within	"bike-able"	distance	from	
the	project.		
	
Existing	Affordable	Housing	
There	are	no	existing	"affordable	dwelling	units"	on	the	property.		There	will	thus	be	no	
loss	of	affordable	housing.		The	project	is	planned	to	include	a	mix	of	units,	including	studio	
units,	at	a	variety	of	price	points.		This	is	a	better	option	than	what	would	be	built	under	the	
existing	zoning	density	(19	large,	expensive,	units)	or	if	the	project	was	not	undertaken	at	
all	and	the	property	remained	in	its	current	use.	
	
The	GFA	of	the	proposed	project	is	66,400sqft	with	5,900sqft	of	ground	floor	commercial	
and	60,500sqft	of	residential.		These	numbers	are	not	inclusive	of	the	below	grade	parking,	
which	has	53	parking	spaces	(16	compact,	2	HC,	and	1	HC	Van).	
	
Compliance	with	USBC	Provisions	
The	project	will	be	constructed	in	complete	compliance	with	all	building	code	
requirements.	
	
Conclusion	
The	proposed	redevelopment	of	the	properties	will	be	in	keeping	with	the	City's	goals	as	
expressed	in	the	Comprehensive	Plan	for	creating	a	mixed-use,	urban	neighborhood	along	
West	Main	Street.			The	project	will	greatly	enhance	the	vibrancy	of	the	eastern	portion	of	
West	Main	Street	by	bringing	an	increase	in	the	number	of	residents	along	the	corridor.		By	
offering	a	variety	of	housing	types	oriented	to	those	who	seek	to	live,	work	and	shop	within	
a	walk-able	setting,	the	project	will	be	filling	a	niche	for	housing	that	is	currently	
underserved.		Approval	of	the	special	use	permit	allowing	residential	density	up	to	120	
units	per	acre	will	enable	all	this	to	be	achieved.	
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SITE DATA:
TAX MAP PARCEL AND OWNER INFO:PARCEL 290003000

HEIRLOOM WEST MAIN STREET SECOND PHASE LLC
178 COLUMBUS AVE #231409
NEW YORK, NY 10023

TOTAL SITE AREA: 0.455 ACRES

IMPERVIOUS AREA:        0.455 ACRES

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE:       0.455 ACRES

SOURCE OF SURVEY, BOUNDARY, AND TOPOGRAPHY:ROGER W. RAY & ASSOCIATES, INC.
663 BERKMAR COURT
CHARLOTTESVILLE, VA 22901
(434) 293-3195
DATED: JANUARY 24, 2019

VERTICAL DATUM REFERENCE: NAVD 88

CURRENT USE: SERVICE REPAIR GARAGE

PROPOSED USE:  MIXED USE RESIDENTIAL  AND COMMERCIAL

PAVED PARKING AND VEHICULAR CIRCULATION AREA IS LOCATED UNDER THE BUILDING AND ACCESSED
ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SITE OFF OF WEST MAIN STREET.

RECREATION AREA: NONE

OPEN SPACE: NONE

ZONED: WEST MAIN STREET EAST CORRIDOR (WMEH)
HISTORIC OVERLAY DISTRICT
PARKING MODIFIED AREA

SETBACKS:                    PRIMARY STREET FRONTAGE (WEST MAIN): 10' MINIMUM, 20' MAXIMUM
SIDE AND REAR (NOT ADJACENT TO LOW DENSITY RES.): NONE

STEPBACK:                    STREETWALL MAXIMUM 40'
STEPBACK AT HEIGHT OF STREET WALL 10'

ADJACENT AREAS: NORTH - COMMERCIAL/RETAIL
EAST - COMMERCIAL/RETAIL
SOUTH - RAILROAD
WEST - COMMERCIAL/RETAIL

MINIMUM HEIGHT: 35'

MAXIMUM HEIGHT: 52'

UTILITIES: CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE PUBLIC WATER, SEWER

WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS (PRELIMINARY):
SITE DATA
PRE DEVELOPED AREA

IMPERVIOUS = 0.455 AC

PRE DEVELOPMENT LOAD (TP) (LB/YR) = 0.99 LB/YR

POST DEVELOPED AREA
IMPERVIOUS = 0.455 AC

POST DEVELOPMENT LOAD (TP) (LB/YR) = 0.99 LB/YR

MAXIMUM PERCENT REDUCTION REQUIRED FOR REDEVELOPMENT = 10%

TOTAL LOAD REDUCTION REQUIRED (LB/YR) = 0.10 LB/YR

ON-SITE TREATMENT PROPOSED
STORMWATER CARTRIDGE FILTERS

WATER QUANTITY ANALYSIS (PRELIMINARY):
DRAINAGE AREA ANALYSIS
PRE DEVELOPED POST DEVELOPED

AREA = 0.455 AC AREA = 0.455 AC
0.455 AC (IMPERVIOUS) 0.455 AC (IMPERVIOUS)

TC = 5 MIN TC = 5 MIN

Q (CFS) V (AC-FT) Q (CFS) V (AC-FT)
1 YEAR 1.97 0.106 1 YEAR 1.17 0.106
10 YEAR 3.65 0.202 10 YEAR 3.38 0.202

CHANNEL PROTECTION (ENERGY BALANCE):

QDEVELOPED ≤ 0.90*(QPRE-DEVELOPED*RVPRE-DEVELOPED)/RVDEVELOPED

OK 1.17 CFS ≤ 0.90*(1.97 CFS*4617 CF)/(4617 CF) CF = 1.78 CFS

FLOOD PROTECTION:

POST-DEVELOPED Q10 ≤ PRE-DEVELOPED Q10

OK 3.38 CFS (POST-DEVELOPED Q10) ≤ 3.65 CFS (PRE-DEVELOPED Q10)

CONCEPT PLAN

EXISTING CONDITIONS
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PARKING RESIDENTIAL RETAIL

PARKING LEVEL 19,830

LEVEL 1 1,413 10,377 5,871

LEVEL 2 17,677

LEVEL 3 17,677

LEVEL 4 14,801

TOTAL: 87,646

602-616 W. MAIN STREET

ZONE: 	

- WEST MAIN STREET EAST CORRIDOR (MIXED-USE)

- ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN CONTROL DISTRICT

- PARKING MODIFIED ZONE

PRIMARY STREETS:

- WEST MAIN STREET	

LAND AREA:

-0.46 ACRES/19,830 SF

DENSITY:	 	

	   BY RIGHT	 	    WITH SUP

          	  43 DUA	 	    120 DUA

TOTAL:  20 DWELLING UNITS      55 DWELLING UNITS

PROPOSED MASSING GSF:
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BAR - PRELIMINARY CONVERSATION SITE LOCATION
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

TOTAL:  20 DWELLING UNITS      55 DWELLING UNITSZONING  HEIGHTS AND SETBACKS

LEVELS 1-3 LEVEL 4

SEC. 34-638:
STREETWALL
REGULATIONS
SETBACKS AT 10'
MIN., 20' MAX

SEC. 34-638: STREETWALL
REGULATIONS
SETBACKS AT 10' MIN. AT
TOP OF STREETWALL
HEIGHT.

SEC. 34-639: BULK PLANE
NO BUILDING MAY EXTEND INTO
A 45-DEGREE ANGULAR PLANE
PROJECTING ABOVE THE LOT,
STARTING AT A HEIGHT EQUAL
TO THE MAXIMUM ALLOWED
HEIGHT IN THE ADJACENT
ZONING DISTRICT.

612 WEST MAIN STREET

BAR - PRELIMINARY CONVERSATION ZONING ANALYSIS
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